From: Brian MacKenzie

To: "Morag.Smith@scotland.gsi.gov.uk™
Subject: RE: Highland-wide LDP

Date: 07 December 2011 14:41:00
Attachments: Draft Settlement Hierarchy.doc
Morag,

In respect of the below request the Council offer the following response to the first part;

“The Council recognise the role of Nairn in the settlement hierarchy as a major contributor to the
spatial strategy. Given recent and forthcoming developments in Nairn it is considered that Nairn
meets the criteria of a sub-regional centre.”

| also attach a draft of the settlement hierarchy to be contained in the appendix.

Brian

Brian MacKenzie

Principal Planner

Development Plans Team

Planning and Development Service
The Highland Council

Tel (01463) 702276

Please take our customer survey by clicking on this link

https://www.surveymonkey.com/s/QCMC9GD

Keep up to date with Development Planning in Highland by visiting our blog at
www.hwldp.blogspot.com

This advice is given without prejudice to the future consideration of and decision on any
application received by The Highland Council

Thathar a’ toirt seachad na comhairle seo gun chlaon-bhreith do bheachdachadh air agus
co-dhunadh a thaobh tagradh sam bith a tha Comhairle na Gaidhealtachd a’ faighinn san am
ri teachd

----- Original Message-----

From: Morag.Smith@scotland.gsi.gov.uk [mailto:Morag.Smith@scotland.gsi.gov.uk]
Sent: 06 December 2011 08:35

To: Brian MacKenzie; devplans

Cc: Carol-Anne.Redpath@scotland.gsi.gov.uk; Brian.Archibald@scotland.gsi.gov.uk;
Jayne.Hollas@scotland.gsi.gov.uk; Kelly.Sinclair@scotland.gsi.gov.uk

Subject: Highland-wide LDP

Brian

Under Issue 92, Chapter 14, Nairn, in the council's summary reference is
made to representation 267 with regard to the settlement hierarchy.
However, in the original representation the first objection is that the
Nairn strategy fails to appropriately recognise the town's
existing/planned role within the settlement hierarchy. It requests that
Nairn be upgraded from a local to a sub-regional centre.

Could the council please provide a response to this specific point.


mailto:Brian.MacKenzie@highland.gov.uk
mailto:Morag.Smith@scotland.gsi.gov.uk
https://www.surveymonkey.com/s/QCMC9GD
http://www.hwldp.blogspot.com/

Appendix 6.2
Settlement Hierarchy


Regional Centre Functions


		

		Inverness






		3G Mobile Phone Network Availability

		X



		Airport with European Connections

		X



		Archive Centre

		X



		Arts and Culture Facilities

		X



		Broadband Provision

		X



		Conference Facilities

		X



		Connections to Long Distance Footpaths/Cycle Routes

		X



		Direct access to road based transport connections linking to the rest of the UK

		X



		Higher/Further Education Facilities

		X



		Hospital with Accident and Emergency Department

		X



		Large Scale Industry

		X



		Library

		X



		Main Post Office

		X



		Major Food Superstore (over 2,500m²)

		X



		Multi-Screen Cinema

		X



		Museum

		X



		Park and Ride Facilities

		X



		Public Transport Interchange

		



		Regional Scale Sports Facilities

		X



		Regional Tourism Gateway

		X



		Specialist Comparison Retailing

		X



		Specialist Office Accommodation

		X



		Strategic Open Spaces

		X





Sub-Regional Centre Functions


		

		South East Ross

		North East Caithness

		Skye

		South West Highland

		South East Sutherland

		Nairn



		3G Mobile Phone Network Availability

		

		

		

		

		

		X



		Air Connections

		

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



		Food Superstore (less than 2,000m²)

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X



		General Hospital 

		X

		X

		

		X

		X

		X



		Higher/Further Education Centre

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		



		Library

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X



		Medium-Large sized Industrial area

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X



		Non-Food and Bulk Goods Retail

		X

		

		

		X

		

		X



		Office Accommodation

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X



		Post Office

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X



		Public transport Linkages to Regional Centre

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X



		Sports Facilities

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X



		Strategic Open Spaces

		X

		X

		

		X

		X

		X



		Tourist Information Centre

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X



		Train Station

		X

		X

		

		X

		X

		X





Sub-Regional Centres may be groups of settlements which have similar characteristics and compliment each other and are within a reasonable distance of each other. Below is the list of the settlements which make up each of the sub-regional centres, the sub-regional centres can comprise of a number of local centres. 


		South East Ross


Dingwall


Alness


Invergordon




		North East Caithness


Thurso


Wick




		Skye


Portree




		South West Highland


Fort William




		South East Sutherland


Dornoch


Golspie


Brora


Helmsdale

		Nairn

Nairn






Local Centre Functions


		

		Thurso*

		Wick*

		Beauly

		Muir of Ord

		Drumnadrochit

		Alness*

		Nairn*

		Invergordon*

		Tain

		Dornoch*

		Lairg

		Golspie*

		Brora*

		Helmsdale*

		Betyhill

		Kinlochbervie

		Durness

		Ullapool

		Gairloch

		Lochcarron

		Kyle of Lochalsh

		Portree*

		Broadford

		Acharacle

		Strontian

		Kinlochleven

		Fort William*

		Fort Augustus

		Culloden



		Public Transport to Regional Centre

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		

		

		

		X

		

		

		

		X

		X

		X

		

		X

		X

		X

		X



		Fuel Filling Station

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X



		Bank

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		

		

		

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		

		

		X

		X

		X

		X



		Post Office

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X



		Secondary School

		X

		X

		

		

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		

		X

		

		

		X

		X

		

		X

		X

		

		X

		X

		

		

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X



		Health Centre

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		

		

		

		X

		X

		

		X

		X

		X

		

		

		X

		X

		X

		X



		Super/Mini-Market

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X



		Office Accommodation

		X

		X

		

		

		

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		

		X

		X

		

		

		

		X

		X

		

		

		X

		X

		

		

		

		

		X

		

		X



		Small Scale Business/Industrial 

		X

		X

		X

		X

		

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		

		X

		

		

		X

		X

		X

		

		X

		X

		X

		

		X



		Broadband Provision

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X



		Fit for Purpose Open Space

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X



		Sports and Leisure Facilities

		X

		X

		

		

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		

		

		X

		

		

		X

		

		

		X

		X

		

		

		X

		

		

		X

		

		X

		

		X



		Tourist Information

		X

		X

		X

		

		X

		

		X

		

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		

		X

		X

		X

		X

		





* Part of a Sub Regional Centre



Under Issue 41 the council response refers to a draft appendix setting out
a settlement hierarchy. Please send a copy of this, as it cannot be
traced.

An early response would be appreciated preferably within the next day
or two.

Regards

Morag

Morag I Smith
Development Plan Assistant

The Scottish Government

Directorate for Planning and Environmental Appeals
4 The Courtyard

Callendar Business Park

Falkirk

FK1 1XR

Tel: + 44 (0) 1324 696460

Fax: + 44 (0) 1324 696444

E-mail: morag.smith@scotland.gsi.gov.uk
www.scotland.gov.uk/Topics/Built-Environment/planning/decisions-
appeals/Appeals/Planinquiries

This e-mail (and any files or other attachments transmitted with it) is
intended solely for the attention of the addressee(s). Unauthorised
use, disclosure, storage, copying or distribution of any part of this
e-mail is not permitted. If you are not the intended recipient please
destroy the email, remove any copies from your system and inform
the sender immediately by return.

Communications with the Scottish Government may be monitored or
recorded in order to secure the effective operation of the system and
for other lawful purposes. The views or opinions contained within
this e-mail may not necessarily reflect those of the

Scottish Government.



file:////www.scotland.gov.uk/Topics/Built-Environment/planning/decisions-appeals/Appeals/PlanInquiries
file:////www.scotland.gov.uk/Topics/Built-Environment/planning/decisions-appeals/Appeals/PlanInquiries

Appendix 6.2 Settlement Hierarchy

Regional Centre Functions

Inverness

3G Mobhile Phone Network Availability

Airport with European Connections

Archive Centre

Arts and Culture Facilities

Broadband Provision

Conference Facilities

XXX XXX X

Connections to Long Distance
Footpaths/Cycle Routes

X

Direct access to road based transport
connections linking to the rest of the UK

Higher/Further Education Facilities

X[ X

Hospital with Accident and Emergency
Department

Large Scale Industry

Library

Main Post Office

Major Food Superstore (over 2,500m?)

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

XX XXX

Strategic Open Spaces




Sub-Regional Centre Functions
South East Ross  North East Caithness  Skye  South West Highland  South East Sutherland Nairn

3G Mobile Phone Network Availability X

Air Connections

Arts and Culture Facilities

Broadband Provision

XXX
XXX X
X|[X[X
XXX X
X|[X[X
XXX

Connections to Long Distance Footpaths/Cycle
Routes

X
>
>
>
>
X

Direct access to road based transport
connections linking to the rest of the UK

Food Superstore (less than 2,000m?)

x| X

General Hospital

Higher/Further Education Centre

Library

XXX XX
XXX
X|X|X|X|X

Medium-Large sized Industrial area

Non-Food and Bulk Goods Retail

Office Accommodation

Post Office

Public transport Linkages to Regional Centre

XXX | X

Sports Facilities

Strategic Open Spaces

X

Tourist Information Centre

XXX XX X X X XX X XXX
XXX X XXX

XXX X X XX X XXX XXX
XXX | X[ XXX

XXX XX X X X X | X | X

Train Station

Sub-Regional Centres may be groups of settlements which have similar characteristics and compliment each other and are within a
reasonable distance of each other. Below is the list of the settlements which make up each of the sub-regional centres, the sub-regional
centres can comprise of a number of local centres.

South East Ross North East Skye South West South East Nairn
Dingwall Caithness Portree Highland Sutherland Nairn
Alness Thurso Fort William Dornoch

Invergordon Wick Golspie
Brora

Helmsdale



Local Centre Functions
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Public Transport to

Regional Centre
Fuel Filling Station

Bank
Sports and Leisure
Tourist Information

Business/Industrial
Facilities

Broadband

Secondary School
Provision

Post Office

Health Centre
Super/Mini-Market
Office
Accommodation
Small Scale

Fit for Purpose
Open Space

* Part of a Sub Regional Centre
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